
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SD NO. 40 (NEW WESTMINSTER)

REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD
AGENDA

Tuesday, December 10, 2019
7:00 pm

School Board Office
811 Ontario Street, New Westminster

The New Westminster School District recognizes and acknowledges the Qayqayt First Nations, as
well as all Coast Salish peoples on whose traditional and unceded territories

we live, we learn, we play and we do our work.

Pages

1. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 7:00 PM

Recommendation:
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New Westminster) adopt
the agenda for the December 10, 2019 Regular School Board meeting.

2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 7:05 PM

a. Minutes from the Open Meetings held:

i. November 26, 2019 Regular Meeting 5

Recommendation:
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New
Westminster) approve the minutes as distributed for the
November 26, 2019 Regular School Board Meeting.

b. Business Arising from the Minutes

3. COMMENT & QUESTION PERIOD FROM VISITORS 7:10 PM

4. CORRESPONDENCE 7:20 PM

a. Minister Adrian Dix, Expansion of Publicly Funded HPV Vaccination
Program, November 15, 2019

14

b. Jackie Teed, City of New Westminster, Feedback Opportunity-Proposed
Initiative to Streamline Development Permits and Official Community
Plan Amendments, November 26, 2019

16



c. Invitation: Annual Christmas Open House-Peter Julian, MP & Judy
Darcy, MLA, December 14, 2019

18

5. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Combined Education and Operations Policy & Planning
Committees, December 3, 2019

7:25 PM

i. Comments from the Committee Chairs, Trustees Beattie and
Connelly

ii. Approval of the December 3, 2019 Combined Education and
Operations Policy & Planning Committee Minutes

19

Recommendation:
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New
Westminster) approve the minutes from the December 3, 2019
Combined Education and Operations Policy & Planning
Committee meeting.

iii. 2019-2024 Strategic Plan 23

Recommendation:
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New
Westminster) adopt the 2019-2024 Strategic Plan as presented,
including the edits as discussed.

iv. Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) Report 47

Recommendation:
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New
Westminster) acknowledge receipt of the Statement of Financial
Information Report for information.

65v. Education Policy and Planning Committee Daytime Meeting
Pilot

Recommendation:
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New 
Westminster) continue to foster youth/student engagement in 
Board Governance, and therefore, the Board directs staff to 
explore the feasibility of having an annual daytime Education 
Policy & Planning Committee meeting in lieu of one monthly 
evening meeting.

Page 2 of 69



6. REPORTS FROM SENIOR MANAGEMENT

a. Superintendent Update (K. Hachlaf) 7:35 PM

b. Bank Signing Authority (B. Ketcham) 7:50 PM

Recommendation:
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New
Westminster)'s bank signing authorities Anita Ansari, Board Chair;
Gurveen Dhaliwal, Board Vice-Chair; Karim Hachlaf, Superintendent; and
Bettina Ketcham, Secretary-Treasurer be approved;

AND FURTHER that effective immediately, bank signing authority Mark
Gifford former Board Chair, be removed.

c. 2020-2021 Board Authority / Authorized (BAA) Courses
(M. McRae-Stanger)

7:55 PM 66

Recommendation:
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New
Westminster) approve the following Board Authority/Authorized Courses
for the 2020/2021 school year:

BAA Applications for Learning 10

BAA Applications for Learning 11

BAA Applications for Learning 12

BAA Laboratory Technology 12

BAA Self-Efficacy 10

BAA Self-Efficacy 11

BAA Self-Efficacy 12

BAA Volleyball Skills 10

BAA Volleyball Skills 12

8:05 PM 67d. Student Withdrawal & New Registration Report (M. Naser)

e. Revised Administrative Procedure 171 Bullying and
Harassment (R. Weston)

8:15 PM 68

7. NEW BUSINESS 8:25 PM

Page 3 of 69



8. TRUSTEE REPORTS 8:30 PM

9. QUESTION PERIOD (15 Minutes) 8:40 PM

Questions to the Chair on matters that arose during the meeting.

10. NOTICE OF MEETINGS 8:55 PM

Tuesday, January 14, 2020: Education Policy & Planning Committee Meeting,
6:00pm - Qayqayt Elementary, 85 Merivale Street

Tuesday, January 21, 2020: Operations Policy & Planning Committee Meeting,
7:00pm - School Board Office

Tuesday, January 28, 2020: School Board Meeting, 7:00pm - School Board
Office

11. REPORTING OUT FROM IN-CAMERA BOARD MEETING 9:00 PM

a. Record of In-Camera November 26, 2019 Board Meeting 69

12. ADJOURNMENT 9:05 PM

Page 4 of 69



 

Page 1 of 9 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR OPEN MEETING 
OF THE NEW WESTMINSTER BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Tuesday, November 26, 2019, 7:00 PM 

School Board Office 
811 Ontario Street, New Westminster 

 
PRESENT Anita Ansari, Vice Chair Karim Hachlaf, Superintendent 
 Dee Beattie, Trustee Bettina Ketcham, Secretary-Treasurer 
 Danielle Connelly, Trustee Maryam Naser, Associate Superintendent 
 Gurveen Dhaliwal, Trustee Robert Weston, Executive Director, Human Resources 
 Mark Gifford, Chair Caroline Manders, Recording Secretary 
 Maya Russell, Trustee  

REGRETS Mary Lalji, Trustee  
 
 
 
 
 
1. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Secretary-Treasurer Ketcham called the meeting to order at 7:03pm. 
Add: Item 3f. Board Committee Appointments 
2019-116 
Moved and Seconded 

THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New Westminster) adopt 
the agenda as amended for the November 26, 2019 Regular School Board meeting. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
a. Minutes from the Open Meeting held: 

1. October 29, 2019 Regular Open Meeting 
2019-117 
Moved and Seconded 
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40  
(New Westminster) approve the minutes as distributed for the 
October 29, 2019 Regular School Board meeting. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

b. Business Arising from the Minutes 
Nil. 

  

The New Westminster School District recognizes and acknowledges the Qayqayt First Nations, as well as all 
Coast Salish peoples, on whose traditional and unceded territories we live, we learn, we play and we do our work. 

Page 5 of 69



Minutes – November 26, 2019 
Regular Open Meeting of the New Westminster Board of Education 
 

Page 2 of 9 

3. TRUSTEE REPORTS 
a. Outgoing Board Report, Chair Gifford 

Chair Mark Gifford reported out on the accomplishments of the 2018-2019 Board 
of Education, a copy of the report has been appended to the Minutes. 
Chair Gifford thanked NWTU, CUPE Local 409, Parent Advisory Committees, 
District staff and looks forward to continuing the great work of the Board and the 
District in 2020. 

b. Election of Chair 
Secretary-Treasurer Ketcham called for nominations for the position of Chair for 
the 2020 Board of Education. Maryam Naser, Associate Superintendent, and 
Robert Weston, Executive Director of Human Resources, served as Scrutineers. 
Trustee Mark Gifford nominated Trustee Anita Ansari as Chair for the 2020 
Board of Education. 
Trustee Ansari accepted the nomination. 
Secretary-Treasurer Ketcham called for nominations for the position of Chair of 
the Board a 2nd and 3rd time. 
There being no further nominations Trustee Ansari was declared Chair for the 
2020 Board of Education (by acclamation). 
Secretary-Treasurer Ketcham turned the Chair over to newly elected Chair Ansari. 

c. Election of Vice-Chair 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the Vice-Chair for the 2020 Board of 
Education. 
Trustee Dee Beattie nominated Trustee Gurveen Dhaliwal as Vice-Chair for 
the 2020 Board of Education. 
Trustee Dhaliwal accepted the nomination. 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the position of Vice-Chair for the 2020 
Board of Education a 2nd and 3rd time. 
There being no further nominations, Trustee Dhaliwal was declared Vice-Chair 
for the 2020 Board of Education (by acclamation). 

d. Election of BCPSEA Representative 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the BCPSEA Representative for the 2020 
Board of Education. 
Vice-Chair Gurveen Dhaliwal nominated Trustee Dee Beattie for BCPSEA 
Representative for the 2020 Board of Education. 
Trustee Beattie accepted the nomination. 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the position of BCPSEA Representative for 
the 2020 Board of Education a 2nd and 3rd time. 
There being no further nominations, Trustee Beattie was declared BCPSEA 
Representative for the 2020 Board of Education (by acclamation). 

BCPSEA Representative Alternate 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the BCPSEA Representative Alternate for 
the 2020 Board of Education. 
Trustee Dee Beattie nominated Vice-Chair Gurveen Dhaliwal for BCPSEA 
Representative Alternate for the 2020 Board of Education.  

Page 6 of 69



Minutes – November 26, 2019 
Regular Open Meeting of the New Westminster Board of Education 
 

Page 3 of 9 

Vice-Chair Dhaliwal accepted the nomination. 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the position of BCPSEA Representative 
Alternate for the 2020 Board of Education a 2nd and 3rd time. 
There being no further nominations, Vice-Chair Dhaliwal was declared 
BCPSEA Representative Alternate for the 2020 Board of Education (by 
acclamation). 

e. Election of BCSTA Provincial Council Delegate 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the BCSTA Provincial Council Delegate 
for the 2020 Board of Education. 
Vice-Chair Gurveen Dhaliwal nominated Trustee Danielle Connelly for 
BCSTA Provincial Council Delegate for the 2020 Board of Education. 
Trustee Connelly accepted the nomination. 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the position of BCSTA Provincial Council 
Delegate for the 2020 Board of Education a 2nd and 3rd time. 
There being no further nominations, Trustee Connelly was declared BCSTA 
Provincial Delegate for the 2020 Board of Education (by acclamation). 

BCSTA Provincial Council Delegate Alternate 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the BCSTA Provincial Council Delegate 
Alternate for the 2020 Board of Education. 
Trustee Danielle Connelly nominated Trustee Maya Russell for BCSTA 
Provincial Council Delegate Alternate for the 2020 Board of Education. 
Trustee Russell accepted the nomination. 
Chair Ansari called for nominations for the position of BCSTA Provincial Council 
Delegate Alternate for the 2020 Board of Education a 2nd and 3rd time. 
There being no further nominations, Trustee Russell was declared BCSTA 
Provincial Delegate Alternate for the 2020 Board of Education (by acclamation). 

f. Committee Appointments 
Trustee Dee Beattie was appointed and accepted to be Chair of the Education 
Policy & Planning Committee. 
Trustee Danielle Connelly was appointed and accepted to continue as Chair of 
the Operations Policy & Planning Committee. 
Trustee Maya Russell was appointed and accepted to be part of the Aboriginal 
Education Advisory Committee and continue as CUPE Management Labour 
Representative. 
Trustees Mark Gifford and Maya Russell continue to serve on the 
Memorialization Advisory Committee. 
Trustees Gifford and Russell to continue to support Sanctuary Schools. 
Trustees Gurveen Dhaliwal and Anita Ansari to continue to support Sexual 
Orientation and Gender Identity (SOGI). 
Trustees Dee Beattie and Maya Russell to continue to serve on Special 
Education Advisory Committee. 

  

Page 7 of 69



Minutes – November 26, 2019 
Regular Open Meeting of the New Westminster Board of Education 
 

Page 4 of 9 

School Assignment Liaisons: 
Trustees to continue with the schools they were assigned in 2019; Trustee Gifford 
to support F.W. Howay Elementary in addition to his current school assignments; 
Trustee Beattie to support SIGMA, RCAP, POWER and Adult Education/Distance 
Ed. in addition to her current school assignment. 
Trustee Danielle Connelly was appointed to support Canadian Parents for French. 
District Parents Advisory Council (DPAC) – Trustees will rotate through 
meetings; Chair Ansari is not able to attend DPAC meetings as a Trustee 
representative as she declared a conflict of interest. 

g. Motion to Destroy Ballots 
No ballots were used, therefore, motion to destroy ballots was not required. 

4. COMMENT & QUESTION PERIOD FROM VISITORS 
Nil. 

5. CORRESPONDENCE 

Correspondence was received. 

6. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a. Education Policy & Planning Committee, November 5, 2019 
i. Comments from the Committee Chair, Trustee Dhaliwal 

Trustee Dhaliwal had no comments. 
ii. Approval of the November 5, 2019 Education Policy and Planning Committee 

Minutes 
2019-118 
Moved and Seconded 

THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New Westminster) 
approve the minutes from the November 5, 2019 Education Policy & 
Planning Committee meeting. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

b. Operations Policy & Planning Committee, November 19, 2019 
i. Comments from the Committee Chair, Trustee Connelly 

Trustee Connelly thanked the audience who attended the meeting on 
November 19, 2019 and for bringing forward the Climate Change information. 

ii. Approval of the November 19, 2019 Operations Policy and Planning 
Committee Minutes 
Trustee Gifford requested an amendment be made to the draft minutes as follows: 

Living Wage - add wording “Staff to draft a timeline for 
implementation and bring back the item at the January 21, 2020 
Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting.' 

  

Page 8 of 69



Minutes – November 26, 2019 
Regular Open Meeting of the New Westminster Board of Education 
 

Page 5 of 9 

2019-119 
Moved and Seconded 
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New Westminster) 
approve the minutes as amended from the November 19, 2019 Operations 
Policy & Planning Committee meeting. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

iii. Climate Action Recommendations 
2019-120 
Moved and Seconded 

THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40  
(New Westminster) include a goal within its strategic plan, a long-term 
Climate Action Plan and to direct staff to incorporate environmental 
strategies when preparing and executing capital planning 
submissions (i.e. Annual Facilities Grant and 5-Year Capital Plan) to 
the Board of Education and Ministry of Education. Further, specific 
consideration of the following shall be made: 

• Measurable targets and specific timelines and goals to reduce 
SD40’s greenhouse gas emissions, consistent with the IPCC 1.5. 

• Consideration to all SD40 schools and sites, transportation and 
purchasing and procurement functionalities. 

• Costs associated to the plans put in place. 

• Opportunities for stakeholder engagement and input. 

• District Staff to provide an update on the development on the 
Climate Action Plan taken by the District in September 2020. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
2019-121 
Moved and Seconded 
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40  
(New Westminster) include a goal within its strategic plan to provide 
leadership and support to increase learning opportunities for both 
students and staff towards climate literacy and environmental 
sustainability. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
iv. Funding Model Review 

2019-122 
Moved and Seconded 

THAT the Board of Education of School District No.40 (New Westminster) 
advocate to the Ministry of Education to ensure Boards of Education are 
provided with the opportunity to model and/or pilot the new funding 
formula recommendations prior to implementation in order to provide 
feedback on the positive and negative implications of the proposed 
recommendations, the impact on the ability of our districts to strengthen 
success for all students and the ability to ensure a system that is 
equitable, predictable and fair for all school districts. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Page 9 of 69



Minutes – November 26, 2019 
Regular Open Meeting of the New Westminster Board of Education 
 

Page 6 of 9 

7. REPORTS FROM SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

a. Superintendent Update 
Superintendent Hachlaf provided highlights of his November report: 
• Remembrance Day events - "No Stone Left Alone" 
• School visits included: 

o Richard McBride: StrongStart, Community Garden, Mindfulness 
Exercises at Richard McBride Elementary 

o Hume Park Home Learners Program: Outdoor Learning; Reflection & 
Mapping 

o F.W. Howay: Classroom Reading 
o CERA - Restorative Justice Symposium on Friday, November 15 
o Fall Superintendent's Conference 

b. Administrative Procedure 354 - Physical Restraint and Seclusion - New Policy 
Director of Learning Services Cunnings explained that the Ministry of Education 
has requested that all Districts ensure that they include a Physical Restraint and 
Seclusion Policy, which is currently Administrative Procedure (AP) 354. It was 
confirmed, that this AP will now be Policy 23 – Physical Restraint and Seclusion. 
No changes were made to the wording. 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

a. 2020-2021 Budget Process 
Secretary-Treasurer Ketcham reviewed the draft 2020-2021 Budget Process with 
the Board. The Funding Formula Review provides some complexity as there is 
no date set for when the Funding Formula will be made public. Superintendent 
Recommendations will be brought forward earlier in the process (March 2020). 
2019-123 
Moved and Seconded 

THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New Westminster) 
approve the 2020-2021 Budget Process as presented. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
9. QUESTION PERIOD (15 Minutes)  

The public was given the opportunity to ask questions on matters that arose during the 
meeting. 

10. NOTICE OF MEETINGS 

Tuesday, December 3, 2019: Combined Education and Operations Policy & Planning 
Committee Meeting, 7:00pm - School Board Office 
Tuesday, December 10, 2019: School Board Meeting, 7:00pm - School Board Office 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020: Education Policy & Planning Committee Meeting, 6:00pm - 
Qayqayt Elementary, 85 Merivale Street 

11. REPORTING OUT FROM IN-CAMERA BOARD MEETINGS 
a. Record of In-Camera October 29, 2019 Board Meeting 
b. Record of Special In-Camera November 5, 2019 Board Meeting 

  
Page 10 of 69



Minutes – November 26, 2019 
Regular Open Meeting of the New Westminster Board of Education 
 

Page 7 of 9 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourn at 7:57pm. 
 

_________________________ 
Chair 

 
_________________________ 

Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 
  

Page 11 of 69



Minutes – November 26, 2019 
Regular Open Meeting of the New Westminster Board of Education 
 

Page 8 of 9 

Chair Report 
It’s my pleasure to provide the Annual Report of the Board. 
I want to take a few minutes to take stock of some of the work of this Board in its first year, and 
share some of my gratitude for the work of so many.  As a Board, we can look back on our first 
year together as one of tremendous learning, development, and growth. In partnership with 
students, families, community partners, and especially, staff - we have made remarkable strides 
as a District. 2018-2019 was a busy year, which included: 

• New Board 
• New Senior Staff 
• New Funding Model 
• Collective Bargaining 
• Graduation Requirements 

Highlights: 
• Strategic Plan 

• Financial Health 
- Budget Consultation 
- ThoughtExchange 
- Talking Tables 

• Public Engagement 
- Student Voice 
- Budget Consultation 
- Strategic Plan 

• Capital – on pace, with facilities serving more than 50% of our students in progress: 
- New Westminster Secondary School 
- Richard McBride Elementary 
- Tweedsmuir Elementary 
- Sapperton Green 
- Queen Elizabeth Elementary to come 
- Five-Year Capital Plan 
- Long Range Facilities Review 
- Childcare  

• Inclusion – Public Education where everyone is welcome 
- Menstrual Initiative 
- Arts Strategy 
- Special Education Review 
- Fuel Up 
- Living Wage 
- Climate Action Plan 
- Aboriginal Enhancement Agreement 
- Expanding Child Care  
- Improved District Communications 
- Live Streaming 
- May Day 
- Memorialization – relationship with Tsilhqot'in and other stakeholders 

  

Page 12 of 69



Minutes – November 26, 2019 
Regular Open Meeting of the New Westminster Board of Education 
 

Page 9 of 9 

• Budget: 
- Arts 
- Operational Improvements 
- Staffing Levels – custodial/EA 
- Increased school allocations for classroom resources 
- Pro-D – Teacher Coaches 
- Student Advisory 

In a little city of big hills…this District has felt a bit of the Little Blue Engine that Could 

- I think I can, I think we can, We think we can 
- Hard-working, optimistic, and not afraid of a challenge or two… 

We have been at our best when we stay open-minded, support each other’s learning, and keep 
our focus on the systems that support student success. We’ve worn our hearts on our sleeves, 
while trying to find agreement on vision and strategies. I like this character. 
When we have not given each other or staff the benefit of the doubt, tried to go it alone, or 
looked for credit before impact, we’ve found ourselves in choppier waters. 
As we move to a place of more focused, strategic action, our progress – with Board, staff, 
community – will continue to move at the speed of trust. Working together, rather than in 
isolation, we have learned we can do so much more. 

• Gratitude: 
- For staff 
- NWTU & CUPE 
- Student Voice 
- Community Partners 
- District Students and Families  
- Our own Families and significant others, who’ve made space and time for us to be of 

service to the District.  

 
Chair Mark Gifford 

Page 13 of 69



 School Board Office, District No 40 604 517 6240 

 811 Ontario Street info@sd40.bc.ca 

 New Westminster, BC V3m 0J7 newwestschools.ca 

 New Westminster School District No 40 | newwestschools.ca Page 1 
 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
November 15, 2019 
 
 
Sent by Email: adrian.dix.MLA@leg.bc.ca 
 
 
Honourable Adrian Dix, MLA 
Minister of Health 
Room 337 Parliament Buildings 
Victoria, BC  V8V 1X4 
 
 
Dear Minister Dix, 

RE: Expansion of Publicly Funded HPV Vaccination Program 

The New Westminster School Board is advocating to your ministry to expand the publicly 
funded HPV vaccination program to include males who were born prior to 2006 and did 
not qualify for the free HPV9 vaccine when the province began immunizing girls in 2008 
and again when the province began immunizing boys born in 2006 or later. 

Currently girls who did not get the vaccine in grade 6 remain eligible for the free HPV9 
vaccine if they start their vaccine series before their 19th birthday and complete it before 
their 26th birthday (born in 1994 and later). - source ImmunizeBC. Boys on the other 
hand, not born in 2006 or later do not have access to the publicly funded HPV vaccine 
program. The out-of-pocket cost to immunize against HPV, according to ImmunizeBC, is 
$500! That cost is prohibitive to many families who might otherwise want to have their 
kids be protected by the HPV vaccine. 

In 2016, the Canadian Cancer Society, along with 25 leading organizations, societies and 
groups from the medical, dental and public health professions urged the BC government 
to expand the publicly funded HPV vaccination program to include both males and 
females. The government at the time agreed and began immunizing grade 6 boys (born in 
2006) starting in 2017. Unfortunately, they did not open up the free vaccination to be 
equal to what is currently available to girls in the province, which means boys born prior 
to 2006 to still have to pay out of pocket to get vaccinated. 

The Canadian Cancer Society recommends that all females age 9 to 45 and males age 9 to 
26 be vaccinated against HPV to help reduce their risk of HPV-associated cancers 
(Source: Canadian Cancer Society). 

The upfront cost associated with offering a publicly funded vaccination to boys would 
more than likely be offset in the future with the prevention of HPV-associated cancers 
affecting men including; anal, penile, oropharyngeal (OPC) and oral cavity cancers. 
According to the Canadian Cancer Society, HPV-associated oral cancers are rising in BC, 
especially among males. 

  

Page 14 of 69

mailto:adrian.dix.MLA@leg.bc.ca


 

 New Westminster School District No 40 | newwestschools.ca Page 2 
 
 

The cost to have our children immunized should not be prohibitive, and all British 
Columbian youth, regardless of gender, sexual orientation or social status should have 
equal opportunity to protect themselves from HPV and its associated diseases.  

We would therefore like to ask the BC government to expand the publicly-funded HPV 
vaccination program to be equal for males in regards to what is currently available to 
females and aligned with the current Canadian Cancer Society recommendation. 

Sincerely, 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 40 (NEW WESTMINSTER) 

 
Mark Gifford 
Chairperson, Board of Education 
 
/cm 
 
cc: Minister of Education – Hon. Rob Fleming 

Parliamentary Secretary for Gender Equity - Mitzi Dean 
 Trustees, New Westminster Schools 

Karim Hachlaf, Superintendent of Schools/CEO 
 Bettina Ketcham, Secretary-Treasurer/CFO 
 

Page 15 of 69



 School Board Office, District No 40 604 517 6240 

 811 Ontario Street info@sd40.bc.ca 

 New Westminster, BC V3m 0J7 newwestschools.ca 

 New Westminster School District No 40 | newwestschools.ca Page 1 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
 
November 26, 2019 
 
 
Sent by Email: jteed@newwestcity.ca  
 
 
 
Jackie Teed 
Senior Manager of Development Services 
City of New Westminster, BC  V3L 1H9 
 
 
Dear Ms. Teed, 

RE: Feedback Opportunity – Proposed Initiative to Streamline Development 
Permits and Official Community Plan Amendments 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback on the proposed initiative to 
streamline development permits and on the official community plan amendments.  

The Board of Education (the Board) is pleased to see efforts to streamline the 
development approval process and supports the proposed changes suggested. 

On the official community plan amendments the Board offers the following for 
consideration: 

1. Proposed Change: Queensborough Community Plan Amendments:  The change of 
school land use designation would be deleted. The two school sites would be changed to 
Major Institutional. 

The Board would like to ask the City to keep in mind that there is a high level of 
growth anticipated to 2041 and that there may be a need to work with the School 
District to identify properties for Major Institutional space to allow for expansion 
in the future in this area. We do not see the change in designation term to 
otherwise impact School District operations or opportunities for expansion and 
needs for growth. 

2. Proposed Change: Official Community Plan Amendments: Staff proposes changing 
the land use designation of three properties (361 Keary Street, 345 Keary Street and  
1906 River Drive). 

The Board would like to ask the City to consider adding our recently purchased 
property, 522 Fader Street, and changing the designation of this property to “Major 
Institutional and/or School”. The property was purchased to meet the growing 
needs of the school district student population and would save the District from 
having to request a variance process in the future. 

  

Page 16 of 69

mailto:jteed@newwestcity.ca


 

 New Westminster School District No 40 | newwestschools.ca Page 2 

We once again thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback. 
 
Yours truly, 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 40 (NEW WESTMINSTER) 

 
Mark Gifford 
Chairperson, Board of Education 
 
/bk 
 
cc: Trustees, Board of Education 
 Karim Hachlaf, Superintendent of Schools/CEO 
 Bettina Ketcham, Secretary-Treasurer/CFO 
 

Page 17 of 69



Page 18 of 69



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

MINUTES OF THE NEW WESTMINSTER BOARD OF EDUCATION 
COMBINED EDUCATION & OPERATIONS POLICY AND PLANNING COMMITTEES 

 
Tuesday, December 3, 2019, 7:00 PM 

School Board Office 
811 Ontario Street, New Westminster 

 
PRESENT Anita Ansari, Chair Karim Hachlaf, Superintendent 
 Dee Beattie, Trustee Bettina Ketcham, Secretary-Treasurer 
 Danielle Connelly, Trustee Maryam Naser, Associate Superintendent 
 Gurveen Dhaliwal, Vice Chair Robert Weston, Executive Director, Human Resources 
 Mark Gifford, Trustee Karen Klein, Director of International Education 
 Maya Russell, Trustee Pam Craven, District Principal 
 Student Trustees: Scott Hodson, Teacher 
 Rebecca Ballard Jamie Sadler, District Principal 
 Tony Jiang 

Sam Killawee 
Maureen McRae-Stanger, Director of Instruction, 
Learning & Innovations 

  Lindsay Waldner, Teacher 
  Bruce Cunnings, Director, Instruction, Learning Services 
  Quirina Gamblen, Director of Programs and Planning 
  Caroline Manders, Recording Secretary 
REGRETS Mary Lalji, Trustee  
 
 
 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01pm. 
Moved and Seconded 
THAT the agenda for the December 3, 2019 Combined Education & Operations 
Policy and Planning Committees' meeting be adopted as distributed. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
2. Correspondence 

Nil. 
3. Presentation 

a. School Learning Plans 
Associate Superintendent Naser updated the Board on the School Learning Plans 
process. The School Learning Plans are available to view on the respective school's 
website. Each Plan captures the focus for the school year. Visits to the schools in 
the fall and spring show the progress made towards achieving their Plans. 

b. Draft 2019-2024 Strategic Plan 
Superintendent Hachlaf reviewed the draft 2019-2024 Strategic Plan "Our Learning 
Journey". Feedback was provided by the trustees. The Strategic Plan will be made 
available as an interactive web version on the District’s website.  

Co-Chairs Beattie and Connelly recognized and acknowledged the Qayqayt First Nations, as well as all 
Coast Salish peoples, on whose traditional and unceded territories we live, we learn, we play and we do our work. 

Page 19 of 69



Minutes – December 3, 2019 
Combined Education & Operations Policy and Planning Committees 
 

Page 2 of 4 

Moved and Seconded 
THAT the Combined Education & Operations Policy and Planning 
Committees recommend to the Board of Education of School District No. 40 
(New Westminster) to adopt the 2019-2024 Strategic Plan as presented, 
including the edits discussed. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
4. Comment & Question Period from Visitors 

Nil. 
5. Student Voice 

Nil. 
6. Reports from Senior Management 

a. Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) Report 
Secretary-Treasurer Ketcham provided a brief overview of the 2018-19 SOFI Report. 
Moved and Seconded 
THAT the Combined Education & Operations Policy and Planning Committees 
recommend to the Board of Education of School District No. 40  
(New Westminster) to acknowledge receipt of the Statement of Financial 
Information Report for information. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
b. 2020-2021 ThoughtExchange Public Engagement Process 

Secretary-Treasurer Ketcham highlighted the upcoming ThoughtExchange public 
engagement process, which will be launched in early January 2020. 

c. Review International Program Report 
Director of International Education Klein presented an update on the International 
Education Program. Of significance, it was noted that the program has had to be 
right-sized as capacity in schools has decreased due to enrollment of local 
students. There is anticipated to be a large financial impact to the District in coming 
years as the fee-paying students has significantly decreased. 
Trustee Connelly indicated that a motion coming forward at the upcoming 
BCSTA AGM will ask to capture the students coming into a District in February 
as well as the current September timeline, which will assist with budgeting. 

d. Board Authority / Authorized (BAA) Courses 
Director of Instruction, Learning & innovations McRae-Stanger provided a brief 
overview of the purpose of BAA courses. The District currently have 26 approved 
BAA courses. 
District Educators Pam Craven, Scott Hodson, and Lindsay Waldner presented their 
respective proposed BAA courses (9 total) including Applications for Learning 
10/11/12; Laboratory Technology 12; Self-Efficacy 10/11/12; Volleyball Skills 10/12. 
The Board requested additional information regarding the following: 
• Laboratory Technology 12 – ensure that NWTU is apprised of using a non-

enrolling teacher for this course. 
• Confirmation of fees for Volleyball Skills courses. 
This information will be provided at the December 10, 2019 Regular Open Board 
meeting.  

Page 20 of 69



Minutes – December 3, 2019 
Combined Education & Operations Policy and Planning Committees 

Page 3 of 4 

e. Special Education Review December Report
Director, Instruction, Learning Services Cunnings delivered the December update:
• ThoughtExchange survey and public engagement information has been

published on social media and the District’s website.
• Parent focus groups are scheduled for December 3 (Lord Kelvin Elementary),

December 10, 2019 (École Glenbrook Middle School) and January 15, 2020
(New Westminster Secondary School).

• LST focus group is December 10-11.
• Student focus group will be created.
• Learning Services staff will take part in a focus group early January.
• Equity Scan has been completed, school principals are now included.
• Advisory Group will meet before Christmas.

f. Non-Replacement Data (Staffing) & Education Assistants' Absence Coverage
Executive Director of Human Resources Weston provided an overview of the
status of absenteeism within the District. Over the past few months, work has
taken place to develop a process to capture absenteeism data more accurately.
65% of absences have been able to be covered from within the District and have
been more successful in recruiting TTOC this year, compared to last year.
Currently, there are 29 students enrolled in the New Westminster Schools’
Education Assistants training program and many have expressed an interest in
working within the District upon graduation (June 2020). The program has gone
very well, and it is anticipated to run the program again in 2020.

g. International Baccalaureate (IB) Programme Update
Director of Programs and Planning Gamblen and Jamie Sadler, District Principal,
provided highlights of the International Baccalaureate Programme (IB) Review.
To provide opportunities to as many students as possible, it is recommended that:
• Options be provided for all Grade 9 students to participate in a wide variety of

courses, especially elective courses;
• Opportunities for all Grade 10 students to take Honours, whether they apply

to the IB Programme or not;
• Options for all Grade 10 students to apply to the IB Programme.
Moving the registration to Grade 10 will allow all staff to be included in the process, 
which will enable both students and staff to be more involved in the process. 
A parent information night is planned for January 8, 2020, which will include a 
break-out session for the various Programs of Choice. 
IB fees are set by the IB organization and are standard across the province. 
Financial support is available for students who may require assistance. 

7. General Announcements
Nil.

Moved and Seconded 
THAT the Combined Education & Operations Policy and Planning Committees’ 
members hereby extend the length of the meeting past 9:30pm as per Board 
Policy 7, Board Operations. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Page 21 of 69

https://my.thoughtexchange.com/#775134458
https://newwestschools.ca/programs-services/inclusive-education/overview/review-of-inclusive-practices/


Minutes – December 3, 2019 
Combined Education & Operations Policy and Planning Committees 
 

Page 4 of 4 

8. New Business 
a. Education Policy and Planning Committee Daytime Meeting Pilot 

It was asked what the proposed time would be for the daytime meeting. This will 
be discussed and confirmed at a later date. 
Moved and Seconded 
THAT the Combined Education and Operations Policy & Planning Committee 
recommend to the Board of Education of School District No. 40  
(New Westminster) that in order to continue to foster youth/student 
engagement in Board Governance, the Board directs staff to explore the 
feasibility of having an annual daytime Education Policy & Planning Committee 
meeting in lieu of one monthly evening meeting. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
9. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 9:40pm. 

Page 22 of 69



STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Strategic Plan 
2019–2024 
[Draft]

Our learning 
journey

DR
AF
T

Page 23 of 69



“The school district is a model 
for what we want the world 
to be: sustainable, safe, 
compassionate, respectful, fair, 
just, curious, open, self-aware, 
connected, honest, welcoming, 
innovative and brave.”

—New Westminster School Teacher

Contents
Part 1:	Our foundation  	 3

Part 2:	Our identity  	 5

Part 3:	Our strategic priorities  11

Part 4:	Our plan  	 17

DR
AF
T

Page 24 of 69



1STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

This booklet outlines our Strategic Plan for the next five years of 

inspired learning – an extraordinary roadmap fully grounded in the 

collective wisdom of our students, staff, parents and community.

You will discover – here in this document and in our interactive online 

version – our commitment to transform student learning, build 

meaningful relationships, ensure full participation in learning, and lead 

into the future.

These four key directions and the actions we will take to make them 

happen are guided by you. For the first time in our history, we incorporated 

exciting and robust consultations with students, staff, parents and the 

community – through a ground-breaking, interactive online forum; 

a month of guided and deeply felt community dialogue sessions; and 

more than 100 interviews conducted by an engagement team of parents, 

administrators, district staff, teachers, trustees and students.

Thanks to so many shared voices through the spring of 2019, we are 

motivated and inspired to be the model we want the world to be: open 

to change, willing to take risks, and guided by a clear, focused and 

meaningful plan of action.

Let us introduce you to our foundation, our identity, our strategic 

priorities, and our plan.

Welcome to our Learning Journey for 2019-2023!

Charting our course at  
New Westminster Schools

Karim Hachlaf, 
Superintendent 

Mark Gifford,  
Board of Education DRAFT

Page 25 of 69



2 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Pictured:  
Caption here.

Our  
foundation

DR
AF
T

Page 26 of 69



3STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Part 1: 
Our foundation

VISION

A place where students love to learn

MISSION

To enable each student to learn in a safe, 
engaging and inclusive environment

VALUES

collaboration
Purposeful cooperative 

relationships to achieve shared 

goals and consider each other  

in our decisions and actions

inclusion
Learning where all people  

are welcomed, respected,  

and supported

engagement
Meaningful, purposeful, 

and relevant learning

innovation
Curiosity, inquiry 

and creativity

equity
Fair treatment and the removal of 

barriers to learning, achievement, 

and the pursuit of excellence for all

integrity
Ethical, principled and honest 

in our words and actionsOur
foundation

DRAFT

Page 27 of 69



4 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Pictured:  
Caption here.

Our  
identity

DR
AF
T

Page 28 of 69



5STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Part 2: 
Our identity
A: ULTIMATE AIMS

How we show up
We aim to live by our values as we engage our 

students, families, and community. These are the 

ways we are dedicated to showing up:  

open and curious

student-focused

forward thinking 

B: PREMISES

The ideas we believe in
We incorporate our Mission, Vision and Values to 

live, learn and work. They remind us what matters 

most. These are the core ideas that guide us 

every student has the right to 
full and equitable opportunity

we each have different 
starting points

we are all learners

our diversity makes us stronger

“Understanding why [changes are being made] 
builds trust.”

—Support Staff

DRAFT

Page 29 of 69



6 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

students
Capable leaders

§ Students have the tools and desire

to make the world a better place

§ Students have a sense of purpose and

be prepared to exercise leadership both

locally and globally

§ Students are adaptable, able to thrive

in a changing future

Responsible citizens

§ Students are responsible, accountable,

and compassionate

§ Students are able to contribute positively

to community and society

Whole and healthy persons

§ Students are confident and composed

with open minds

§ Students have the emotional, social,

and physical literacy skills to succeed in life

§ Students pursue their full potential,

are resilient when faced with challenges,

and have healthy relationships

Persistent learners

§ Students love to learn and become

life-long learners

§ Students develop critical thinking skills,

confidence to try new things, curiosity

to encourage their learning

§ Students are thoroughly engaged in

learning now and into the future

families
Connected to their children’s learning

§ Families are aware of their children’s

learning potential and progress

§ Families are interacting with their children

about learning and growing

§ Families experience joy and fulfillment

in the learning of their children

Engaged and trusting the 
educational system

§ Families find the education system

understandable and approachable

§ Families are involved in their schools

§ Families feel supported and valued by

school personnel

Accepting and valuing the diversity of 
the community

§ Families from diverse groups in the

community are receiving and can count

on culturally-specific supports, sensitivity

and understanding

§ Families are meaningfully involved with

the community

§ Families are enriched by ideas, perspectives,

and cultural experience through schools.

§ Supporting BIPOC and LGBTQ2SIA members

in our community

C: INTENDED IMPACT

The difference we seek to make
Our ideas of intended impact are areas of change we aim to effect, 

the difference we want to make. As a result of our schools, our students, 

families, staff and community will be affected in these ways

DRAFT

Page 30 of 69



7STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

staff
Thrive in their work

§ Staff enjoy being a part of

the New Westminster Schools

§ Staff find purpose and meaning

in their work in the district

Reach their full potential in their roles

§ Staff have the support they need to excel

§ Staff are growing and developing

in their profession

Experience their value 

§ Staff contribute to the success of the schools

§ Staff experience respect and appreciation

§ Staff have a sense of belonging

community
Connected richly

§ The community has stronger, better,

more meaningful relationships

§ All generations within the community,

interact with each other, care for each

other, and learn from each other

§ The community is welcoming

and committed to involving all

Partnered in purpose

§ The community encourages people

to work, act, and learn together

§ The community joins together to improve

the experience of all community members

§ The community is strengthened and

enriched through the children and youth

in our schools

“I see many children of different backgrounds 
in [my child’s] school. They all seem to interact 
really well with each other, enjoy and appreciate 
each other. It’s really special.”

—Parent

DRAFT

Page 31 of 69



8 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

D: BEST MEANS

The approach we take
We believe that every endeavor is guided by a set of commitments not just 

about the “why” and the “what ”,  but also the “how.” These are the ways 

we are committed to engaging in and through our schools. This is our way, 

our approach. These principles inform everything we do.

listening to the voices 
of students

putting relationships 
at the centre

creating spaces 
to hear truth

engaging, involving, and 
supporting parents, staff, 
and the community

personalizing 
learning

using the collective wisdom 
at all levels

making financially responsible 
and informed choices

advocating for the unmet needs 
of our studentsDRAFT

Page 32 of 69



9STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

“At my child’s school, their love 
for the children is apparent. 
They want the very best for the 
kids. This is apparent at all levels. 
This inspires me!”

—Parent
DR
AF
T

Page 33 of 69



10 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Pictured:
Caption here.

Our  
strategic 

priorities
DR
AF
T

Page 34 of 69



11STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Part 3: 
Our strategic priorities
STRATEGIC PRIORITY A

Transform the student experience
What we mean

Our priority is to promote student success. We know it 

takes focused effort and investment to provide the best 

possible learning experience for our students. We are 

dedicated to creating exciting teaching and learning 

environments. We will maximize the expertise of our 

teachers, staff, and education partners. We will leverage 

the human and material resources of our schools and 

community to promote teaching and learning of highest 

quality. We will nurture educational environments that 

are healthy and supportive Our aim is to pursue the 

best possible student experience through bold, creative, 

attentive, evidence-informed, consistent, supportive, 

and effective teaching and learning

Characteristics of our future

§ Students experience joy

and excitement in learning

§ Classrooms, schools, and schools

partners have resources, training,

and support they need

§ Community partners are excited

to join with New Westminster Schools

§ New Westminster Schools is a leader

in teaching and learning excellence

Below: Caption regarding 
image in footer area.DRAFT

Page 35 of 69



12 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

STRATEGIC PRIORITY B

Build meaningful relationships
What we mean

Our aim is to be a district that puts relationships at 

the heart of all we do. To pursue this priority, we will 

engage people thoughtfully and responsively throughout 

every level of our schools and our whole community. 

We will strengthen our relationship with community 

partners. We will build bridges to our families. We will relate 

to all our staff with empathy and respect. Most critically, 

we will seek to build relationships with all of our students, 

from all capacities, backgrounds, and interests. We will 

listen as much as we speak. We will be open and curious 

toward others. Our communications will be two-way, 

timely, transparent, honest, and respectful. We will actively 

seek feedback and consultation, both within our district 

and throughout our community. We will be trustworthy 

and trusting towards others. We will engage in dialogue, 

sensitively and with curiosity. We will actively seek, 

embrace, and nurture strong partnerships and collaborative 

practices because we believe it takes a whole community 

to promote the learning of its next generations.

Characteristics of the future

§ Students will experience appreciation,

support, and belonging

§ Health and wellness will be

prioritized throughout all levels

of the educational system

§ Teachers, staff, and administration

will enjoy a culture based on empathy

and trust

§ Families will be meaningfully

engaged in the teaching and learning

at our schools

§ Newcomers will be drawn into

the social fabric of the schools

§ Community partners will be

integrated and integral to the

education of the next generation

“[I] feel heard… have opportunities to provide 
input and feel there is a real effort towards this. 
I’m excited by the direction the district is going.”

—Community Partners

DRAFT

Page 36 of 69



13STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

STRATEGIC PRIORITY C

Lead into our future
What we mean

Our priority is to maximize learning opportunities and 

overcome the barriers to learning posed by our changing 

world. We aim to be an evolving, improving, and adapting 

district, not at the expense of stability and consistency 

but in service to improvement, responsiveness, and 

preparedness in light of our rapidly changing times. 

As such, we will lead into our future with energy, curiosity, 

flexibility, adaptability, courage, and hope. We will seek 

ways not only to withstand our changing environment but 

to embrace it, thrive in it, and improve it. We will practice 

measured and intelligent risk-taking. We will be open to 

trying new approaches to teaching and learning. We will 

examine ourselves and consistently reflect on how we 

might grow, adapt, and evolve to better serve our students, 

families, staff and community. We will not settle for the 

status quo where the status quo no longer best serves the 

future of our children, youth, families, and community.

Characteristics of the future

§ Teachers, staff, and administrators

will learn and grow along with students

§ The skills and capacities of school

personnel and partners to maximize

emerging opportunities will be a focus

and investment of the school district

§ District staff and partners will

practice measured risk-taking,

innovation, and program

experimentation

§ Innovation and progress will

be embraced within the district

at all levels

§ The district will have financial,

workforce, and physical infrastructure

sustainability

§ Talented school personnel will be

retained and nurtured for current

and future leadership

§ A culture of truth and reconciliation

will permeate the district as people

at all levels both share and receive

insight and advice

DRAFT

Page 37 of 69



14 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

STRATEGIC PRIORITY D

Ensure full participation in learning 
What we mean

We will be a welcoming and inclusive learning community, 

especially to those who experience barriers to the full 

experience of learning in New Westminster. We will 

actively, courageously, and creatively seek ways to 

dismantle barriers to participation for students and their 

families. We will pursue ways to engage students of all 

learning styles and capabilities. We will develop means to 

overcome challenges students face to fully participating 

in the learning experience – hunger, health, trauma, 

other-ability, and access. We will involve the uninvolved 

in our community. We will partner in providing strategic 

and meaningful out-of-school learning experiences to 

foster enriched and expansive learning for children and 

youth. With energy and sensitivity, we will practice equity, 

reconciliation, and restorative education in all we do. 

We will become a leader and model of inclusion

Characteristics of the future

§ Supportive services are visible

and accessible to all students

§ The most vulnerable students in our

community are included and have

exceptional learning experiences

in our schools

§ Families experience the support they

need to help their children reach their

full learning potential

§ Schools are actively engaged in

consistent, effective, and authentic

outreach to families

§ Educators practice skillful techniques

of inclusion for all students

§ The whole community – families,

community partners, businesses,

government, and others – is informed,

motivated, and mobilized to draw

the marginalized and least engaged

into the excitement of learning and

growing through schools
“The kids are at the 

centre of all we do.”

—Principal

DRAFT

Page 38 of 69



15STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

“Caring for the students is what 
keeps me engaged. Seeing them 
learn, grow and develop.”

—Support Staff
DR
AF
T

Page 39 of 69



16 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Pictured: 
Caption here.

Our  
plan

DR
AF
T

Page 40 of 69



17STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

Our
plan

Part 4: 
Our Plan
OVERARCHING GOALS

Transform the student experience, build 
meaningful relationships, lead into the 
future, ensure full participation

In this section, you will discover our Board of 

Education’s overarching goals for each of our four 

strategic priorities – along with the steps to get  

us there. 

These are guiding the work of our teams, schools, 

and departments throughout the district.  Our 

Facilities and Operations team for instance, will 

help transform the student experience by ensuring 

‘barrier-free access to safe, healthy, and green 

learning environments.” Our Human Resources 

team will help transform the student experience by 

supporting staff collaboration and innovative learning 

as one way to enhance the classroom experience. 

You will discover the rich and interconnected details 

of our district-wide plan in our colour-coded, 

interactive – and living – online document (see 

www.newwestschools.ca). 

Across New Westminster Schools, our shared 

priorities – along with our team, school and 

department-specific goals and actions - will amplify 

and enhance each other.  Together, we are building a 

foundation for making our New Westminster Schools 

vision a reality: that we are a place where students 

love to learn. 

Below: Caption regarding 
image in footer area.DRAFT

Page 41 of 69



18 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

OUR GOAL  HOW WE GET THERE

Be unwavering in our 
commitment to improve 
student success

§ Improve education outcomes for all students, with a focus on

improving equity for Indigenous students, children-in-care, and

students with diverse abilities

§ Maintain our focus on improving literacy and numeracy

expectations for every learner

§ Support the development of the core and curricular

competencies in order for students to achieve their life goals

Students are thriving 
emotionally, socially and 
academically, and are whole 
and healthy learners

§ Increase evidence-based supports towards social-emotional

learning, and mental and physical health literacy

§ Ensure continuum of supports for students with diverse abilities

and needs

Students are meaningfully 
engaged and have an 
active voice

§ Foster inclusive student feedback opportunities with the Board

of Education through monthly Education Policy and Planning

Committee meetings

§ Provide ongoing support toward an annual student symposium

Staff are supported and 
encouraged to find purpose 
and meaning in their work 
and reach their full potential

§ Provide staff with opportunities for collaboration, shared

learning and timely access to curricular resources

Transform the 
student experience

DRAFT

Page 42 of 69



19STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

OUR GOAL  HOW WE GET THERE

Families have opportunities 
to engage with the educational 
system to develop trusting 
relationships

§ Ensure meaningful consultation in district learning initiatives

and budget development

§ Provide families with access to curriculum and educational resources

that reflect and value the cultural diversity of our community

§ Ensure families have a culturally safe and accessible location to

receive support with registration and settlement

§ Ensure Sanctuary Schools policy and procedures are publicly

visible, and increase understanding by staff and families

Students are connected in 
a welcoming and inclusive 
learning community

§ Increase the number of students who feel welcomed, safe,

connected, and have a sense of belonging in their school

§ Maintain commitment towards district culture which supports

diversity regardless of sexual orientation, gender identity or

expression.

§ Increase support and tools to handle bullying, harassment and

personal conflict within our schools

§ Improve and provide seamless student transitions into

elementary, middle, secondary school

Staff are valued 
and appreciated

§ Provide for increased opportunities for staff recognition address

Meaningful relationships 
with community partners 
to support our students 
and families

§ Ensure policies and procedures encourage community partners

to work with the District and support strategic priorities

§ Increase access to school spaces during non-instructional time

for our public and non-profit partners

§ Continue to provide annual volunteer and community

partner recognition

§ Strengthen and expand community partnerships

Build meaningful 
relationships

DRAFT

Page 43 of 69



20 STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

OUR GOAL  HOW WE GET THERE

A culture of truth and 
reconciliation guides and 
informs our work in the 
district

§ Ensure District policies and investment align with our

Aboriginal Enhancement Agreement, the Truth and Reconciliation

Commission, and the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of

Indigenous Peoples

§ Provide ongoing commitment to decolonize the district’s physical

structures and honour the traditional and un-ceded territories of

the Qayqayt First Nation and Coast Salish peoples

§ Continue to collaborate with and support the Qayqayt First Nation

Maintain financial 
accountability, transparency 
and stability

§ Ensure a transparent and consultative budget process with all

partner groups

§ Ensure annual budgets and allocation of resources align with

strategic priorities and objectives

Develop an environmental 
strategy and climate action 
plan, and provide leadership 
in environmental education

§ Reduce District greenhouse gas emissions and carbon footprint

§ Increase learning opportunities for students and staff towards

climate literacy and environmental sustainability

§ Expand our green initiatives in our facilities and operations

Develop innovative and 
sustainable programs

§ Increase access to existing and future specialty programs

§ Review the District’s alternate, online and continuing education

programs to ensure the diverse needs of our students are being met

Implement the District’s 
long-range facilities plan

§ Ensure all district facilities are seismically safe

§ Develop modern and efficient facilities to support increasing

enrolment and provide a healthy and safe environment

Attract, recruit and 
retain staff

§ Promote New Westminster Schools as a place where we all love to learn

§ Actively engage with our post-secondary partners in recruiting

talented new staff

§ Sustain high quality leadership development programs

§ Expand implementation of District’s Educational Assistant

Training Program

Lead into 
our future

DRAFT

Page 44 of 69



21STRATEGIC PLAN: NEW WESTMINSTER SCHOOLS 2019–2024

OUR GOAL  HOW WE GET THERE

Sustain our ongoing 
commitment to address 
food security and healthy 
eating to ensure high 
quality food programs are 
available in our schools

§ Reduce impact and stigma of family poverty

§ Ensure students receive ongoing healthy-eating

learning opportunities

§ Continued investment in our district-wide Fuel Up! school

nourishment program, with a commitment to affordability and

accessibility for all

Increased childcare 
opportunities for 
our families

§ Increase the availability of before and after school childcare

spaces in the District

§ Continue to collaborate with the City of New Westminster to

address childcare needs

Act as an advocate for 
public education in 
New Westminster and 
the province

§ The Board of Education will model responsible governance and

continue to develop strong working relationships with students,

families, staff and the community

§ Promote regular meetings and maintain timely and constructive

communication with municipal and provincial government

officials to garner support for educational objectives

§ Advance District positions and priorities through relevant

provincial organizations and associations

Ensure full participation 
in learning

“All the adults – almost everyone, really 
care about us – as students and as people. 
The teachers, aids, [and] principal.”

—Student

DRAFT

Page 45 of 69



New Westminster Schools recognizes and acknowledges  

the Qayqayt First Nation, as well as all Coast Salish peoples,  

on whose traditional and unceded territories we live,  

we learn, we play and we do our work.

New Westminster School District 

School Board Office School District No 40 

811 Ontario Street New Westminster, BC Canada V3M 0J7

604 517 6240 | info@sd40bcca | newwestschoolsca

DR
AF
T

Page 46 of 69



Page 47 of 69



Page 48 of 69



Page 49 of 69



Page 50 of 69



Page 51 of 69



Page 52 of 69



Page 53 of 69



Page 54 of 69



Page 55 of 69



Page 56 of 69



Page 57 of 69



Page 58 of 69



Page 59 of 69



Page 60 of 69



Page 61 of 69



Page 62 of 69



Page 63 of 69



Page 64 of 69



 
School District No. 40 (New Westminster) 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

Supplement to: COMBINED EDUCATION AND OPERATIONS POLICY & PLANNING 
  COMMITTEE 

Date: December 3, 2019 

Submitted by:  Danielle Connelly, Trustee 
 

Item: Requiring Action Yes ☒ No ☐ For Information ☐ 

 
Subject: Youth/Student Engagement in Board Governance 

 
 
Background: 

In the past year, New Westminster Schools has taken many exciting steps to encourage youth 
engagement at the Board table. Students have engaged in the budget process, through Student 
Voice, and bringing issues of importance to them to Board meetings. 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Combined Education and Operations Policy & Planning Committee recommend 
to the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New Westminster) that in order to 
continue to foster youth/student engagement in Board Governance, the Board direct staff 
to explore the feasibility of having an annual daytime Education Policy & Planning 
Committee meeting in lieu of one monthly evening meeting. 
 

Page 65 of 69



 
School District No. 40 (New Westminster) 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

Supplement to: REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

Date: December 10, 2019 

Submitted by:  Maureen McRae-Stanger, Director of Instruction, Learning and Innovation 
 

Item: Requiring Action Yes ☒ No ☐ For Information ☐ 

 
Subject: 2020-2021 Board Authority/Authorized Courses 

 
 
Background: 

Board Authority/Authorized (BAA) Courses are locally developed Grade 10, 11, and 12 courses 
that meet the graduation requirements set by the Ministry of Education. BAA courses are 
developed to provide learning opportunities that allow for choice and flexibility for students.  BAA 
courses must be authorized by Boards of Education as per the requirements set out by the 
Ministry of Education. New Westminster School District Administrative Procedure 219 outlines the 
process by which BAA courses are submitted for the approval of the Board of Education.  

 
Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Board of Education of School District No. 40 (New Westminster) approve the 
following Board Authority/Authorized Courses for the 2020/2021 school year: 

 
BAA Applications for Learning 10 
BAA Applications for Learning 11 
BAA Applications for Learning 12 
BAA Laboratory Technology 12 
BAA Self-Efficacy 10 
BAA Self-Efficacy 11 
BAA Self-Efficacy 12 
BAA Volleyball Skills 10 
BAA Volleyball Skills 12 

 

Page 66 of 69



 STUDENT WITHDRAWAL AND NEW REGISTRATION REPORT FOR GRADES K TO 12 

W/D REG W/D REG W/D REG

New Registrations 136 28 15

W/D Other 22 1 3

W/D Moved 96 11 11

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

TO
TA

L

SEPTEMBER 2019 TO NOVEMBER 2019

SEPT. 2019      OCT. 2019    NOV. 2019    DEC. 2019.    JAN. 2020.   FEB. 2020.     MAR. 2020.  APR. 2020.   MAY 2020

Page 67 of 69



 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from SD No. 40 (New Westminster) 

 
Admin Procedure 171  1 | P a g e  o f  1  

 

ADMIN PROCEDURES MANUAL  
Administrative Procedure 171  

 
 

BULLYING AND HARASSMENT 
Background 
The District is dedicated to ensuring that employees are able to work in a safe environment, 
without fear of bullying or and/or harassment.  

Definition 
The definition ofWorkSafeBC’s Occupational Health and Safety policies use the phrase “bullying 
and harassment” as a single term which according to WorkSafeBC’s policies is as follows: 
“Bullying and harassment includes: 
 

a) Includes  anyd inappropriate conduct or comment by a person towards a worker that the 
person knew or reasonably ought to have known would cause that worker to be humiliated 
or intimidated, but,  

a)b) excludesExcludes any reasonable action taken by an employer or supervisor 
relating to the management and direction of workers or the place of employment.” 

Procedures 
1. The Extending District will not tolerate, from the District’s Code of Conduct (Administrative 

Procedure 104) to provide a respectful workplace, the Districtand will not tolerate, and is 
committed to preventing, or otherwise minimize, any instance of bullying and harassment in 
the workplace.   This will be supported by annual training.g. 

2. All employees share in the responsibility to ensure that the work environment is safe and 
welcoming. Employees are responsible for reporting any instances of bullying or 
harassment, whether they were the target, orthey experience or they were witness to the 
bullying or and harassment incident. 

3. Depending on the degree of seriousness, the board may designate a representative, other 
than the supervisor, to respond to the allegation and complete the investigation. .  

2.4. All employees making a complaint of bullying or and harassment in good faith can do 
so without fear of retaliation or reprisal. All parties involved must respect and protect the 
personal privacy of their colleagues. . 

 
Reference: Sections 20, 22, 65, 85, 177 School Act 
 Human Rights Act 
 Workers’ Compensation Act, Sections 115 to 117 
 Occupational Health and Safety Policies D3-115-2, D3-116-1, D3-117-2Regulation 
SD No. 40 (New Westminster) 

Adopted:  May 30, 2017 
Revised:  December 10, 2019 

Commented [MC1]: Option to delete, but we must include 
procedures for a worker to report if the employer, supervisor .. is 
the alleged bully and harasser.  

Commented [MC2]: Typically the sections are referenced after 
the legislation 

Page 68 of 69



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 40 (NEW WESTMINSTER) 
RECORD OF NOVEMBER 26, 2019 IN-CAMERA MEETING 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA –  6:05 pm. 

MINUTES FOR APPROVAL – October 29, 2019; Special November 5, 2019; November 19, 2019 

CORRESPONDENCE – Nil 

REPORTS FROM SENIOR MANAGEMENT – Personnel / Facilities / Administration 

ITEMS TO BE REPORTED OUT AT OPEN MEETING – Nil 

NOTICE OF MEETINGS 

ADJOURNMENT –  6:48 pm. 

Page 69 of 69


	1. Adoption of the Agenda
	2. Approval of the Minutes
	a. Minutes from the Open Meetings held:
	i. November 26, 2019 Regular Meeting

	b. Business Arising from the Minutes

	3. Comment & Question Period from Visitors
	4. Correspondence
	a. Minister Adrian Dix, Expansion of Publicly Funded HPV Vaccination Program, November 15, 2019
	b. Jackie Teed, City of New Westminster, Feedback Opportunity-Proposed Initiatie to Streamline Development Permits and Official Community Plan Amendments, November 26, 2019
	c. Invitation: Annual Christmas Open House-Peter Julian, MP & Judy Darcy, MLA, December 14, 2019

	5. Board Committee Reports
	a. Combined Education and Operations Policy & Planning Committees, December 3, 2019
	i. Comments from the Committee Chairs, Trustees Beattie and Connelly
	ii. Approval of the December 3, 2019 Combined Education and Operations Policy & Planning Committee Minutes
	iii. 2019-2024 Strategic Plan Recommendation
	DRAFT 2019-2024 Strategic Plan

	iv. Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) Report Recommendation
	2018-19 SOFI Report

	v. Education Policy and Planning Committee Daytime Meeting Pilot Recommendation
	Backgrounder-Youth/Student Engagement in Board Governance



	6. Reports from Senior Management
	a. Superintendent Update (K. Hachlaf)
	b. Bank Signing Authority (B. Ketcham)
	c. 2020-2021 Board Authority / Authorized (BAA) Courses Recommendation (M. McRae-Stanger)
	Backgrounder-2020-2021 Board Authority / Authorized Courses

	d. Student Withdrawal & New Registration Report (M. Naser)
	e. Revised Administrative Procedure 171 Bullying and Harassment (R. Weston)

	7. New Business
	8. Trustee Reports
	9. Question Period
	10. Notice of Meetings
	11. Reporting Out from In-Camera Board Meeting
	a. Record of In-Camera November 26, 2019 Board Meeting

	12. Adjournment



